
 

 
 

 

Barr Engineering Co. 4300 MarketPointe Drive, Suite 200, Minneapolis, MN 55435 952.832.2600 www.barr.com 

January 13, 2023 

Submitted via email 

 

John Zinza 

Toxics Cleanup Program – Central Regional Office 

Department of Ecology 

1250 W. Alder Street 

Union Gap, WA 98903 

email: john.zinza@ecy.wa.gov 

 

Re: Schedule for Preparation of Draft Feasibility Study 

 Yakima Mill Site  

 Agreed Order No. DE 13959  

 

Dear Mr. Zinza: 

This letter is submitted in response to the Washington Department of Ecology (Ecology) request for an 

updated draft feasibility study (FS) schedule provided in the December 6, 2022, letter from John Zinza 

(Ecology) to Allan Gebhard (Barr Engineering) which Barr Engineering received on December 14, 2022 

(included as Attachment A). The FS schedule presented below includes primary tasks of collecting 

additional data from the existing groundwater monitoring network, conducting treatability studies, and 

completing geochemical modeling to inform the evaluation of the alternatives in the FS. A general scope 

of the work is also provided. This scope may be adjusted as more information is collected. We will keep 

you informed of progress as the work is completed. 

We appreciate the collaborative discussion during the January 6, 2023, meeting and will incorporate the 

feedback provided during the meeting and in the December 6, 2022, letter into the draft FS.  

 

Draft FS Schedule: 

• First quarter – 2023  

o Install the replacement well for MW-101 (MW-101R) 

▪ This is a critical path task to meet the proposed schedule 

o Conduct groundwater sampling for semi-volatile organic constituents (SVOCs) at: MW-6, 

MW-12, MW-20, MW-24, MW-100, and MW-101R 

o Complete preparation of initial PHREEQ geochemical model using historical sampling 

data 

o Prepare for on-site treatability testing and notify Ecology of the scope and approach for 

the planned testing 

• Second quarter – 2023 

o Conduct groundwater sampling for SVOCs at: MW-6, MW-12, MW-20, MW-24, MW-100, 

and MW-101R  

o Initiate on-site treatability testing field work; anticipated to include, collecting samples, 

installing performance monitoring wells, and implementing groundwater treatability 

testing 
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o Conduct sub-slab vapor sampling beneath buildings  

o Provide documentation on the location of the section of piping near MW-06 requested 

by Ecology 

• Third quarter – 2023 

o Conduct groundwater sampling for SVOCs at MW-101R 

o Continue on-site groundwater treatability testing 

• Fourth quarter – 2023 

o Conduct groundwater sampling for SVOCs at MW-101R  

o Compile and analyze results of treatability testing 

o Update PHREEQ geochemical model with additional data gathered from treatability 

testing 

• First and second quarters – 2024 

o Prepare draft FS for submittal to Ecology 

▪ The draft FS will be provided within 120 days of receipt of the 2023 fourth quarter 

analytical sampling results from MW-101R 

Additional work in support of the draft FS report will occur throughout the schedule presented above.  

Such work is anticipated to include, compiling background information, establishing applicable or relevant 

and appropriate requirements (ARARs), evaluating alternatives, and developing cost estimates. The draft 

FS will combine the information in a holistic manner designed to allow Ecology to evaluate the 

alternatives and select a cleanup action plan according to WAC 173-340-360. Work will be completed 

consistent with the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA) and the guidance provided in your January 6, 2023, 

letter. 

In the event the scope of work is adjusted or other circumstances arise that make it necessary to modify 

the schedule set out above, we will communicate accordingly with Ecology to request an adjustment(s) to 

the schedule as Ecology deems appropriate. 

Please contact Alec or me with any questions or comments.  

  

 

Thank you.                                                                                                                                                  

Allan Gebhard 

Project Coordinator 

 

c. Rhonda Luke, Arthur Buchan, Jennifer Lind, Valerie Bound 

 

Attachments 

Attachment A – December 6, 2022 Letter from John Zinza (Ecology) to Allan Gebhard (Barr Engineering) 
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